
Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel to be 

held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 
Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 26 September 2022 

 
TIME:  6.00 pm (Briefing for Panel Members at 5.30pm) 
 

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING FACE 

TO FACE MEETINGS.  

 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   Developing a new GM Clean Air Plan.  

 
(Pages 3 - 24) 

4   Budget Monitoring Report - Quarter 1.  

 

(Pages 25 - 34) 

5   Update on Temporary Accommodation and Rough Sleeping in 

Salford.  

 

(Pages 35 - 42) 

6   Work Programme.  

 

(Pages 43 - 44) 

7   Minutes of previous meeting.  

 

(Pages 45 - 48) 

8   Any other business.  

 

 

9   Date and Time of Next Meeting - Monday 24 October 2022, 
6.00pm.  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602 

Claire Edwards, Democratic Services, 
claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk 

E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Last updated 08.05.22 

Face to Face Public Meetings in The Salford Suite, Civic Centre 

Face to face public meetings have been held in The Salford Suite in the Old Town 

Hall Building at the Civic Centre from Wednesday 1st September 2021.   
 

1. General guidelines for meetings 

a. We are holding most public decision-making meetings in the Salford Suite at the 
Civic Centre in Swinton. 

  

2. Using the Salford Suite for face-to-face meetings  

There are also construction works be carried out in the Civic Centre so it is very 

important, for everyone’s safety, that you only visit the Salford Suite when attending 

meetings.   

a. Where to enter the building 
You must enter the building by the main front door of the Old Town Hall building.  

You will need to be let into the building as a pass is required so an officer from 
Democratic Services should be on hand to direct you safely to The Salford Suite.   
For evening meetings, if you cannot get access via the main front door please 

walk around to the main Reception and press the out of hours buzzer to gain 
access.  

 

 
 

b. Areas of the building that are closed to people attending meetings   

 Building renovations are taking place in the Civic Centre so access to rooms 
and space is very limited.  Parts of the building will remain closed and many 

contractors will be working on site. 

 Other members of the public are also using the building to access the 
Registrars offices and the ceremony rooms and arrangements and to help us 
manage the numbers of people in the building so access is restricted to 

the Registrars corridor and the ceremony room’s corridor during the 
day. 

 

c. Toilets  

 The toilets on the first floor on the committee room corridor must be used.  

The Registrars corridor will not be open to members, officers and members of 

the public attending meetings in The Salford Suite during the day.   

 The accessible toilet can be used on the Registrars corridor if required.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Annex



Last updated 08.05.22 

3. What to do if you have symptoms of a respiratory infection, including 

COVID-19, and have not taken a COVID-19 test.  

The advice on the gov.uk website says: 

 Try to stay at home and avoid contact with other people if you have symptoms 
of a respiratory infection, such as COVID-19, and you have a high 

temperature or do not feel well, try to stay at home and avoid contact with 
other people, until you no longer have a high temperature (if you had one) or 
until you no longer feel unwell. 

 If you leave your home while you have symptoms of a respiratory infection, 
and you have a high temperature or feel unwell, the following actions will 

reduce the chance of passing on your infection to others: 
o wearing a well-fitting face covering made with multiple layers or a surgical 

face mask 

o avoiding crowded places such as public transport, large social gatherings, 
or anywhere that is enclosed or poorly ventilated 

o covering your mouth and nose when you cough or sneeze; wash your 
hands frequently with soap and water for 20 seconds or use hand sanitiser 
after coughing, sneezing and blowing your nose and before you eat or 

handle food and avoid touching your face. 
 

4. What to do if you have a positive COVID-19 test result 

The advice on the gov.uk website says: 

 Try to stay at home and avoid contact with other people if you have a positive 

COVID-19 test result, it is very likely that you have COVID-19 even if you do 

not have any symptoms. You can pass on the infection to others, even if you 

have no symptoms. 

 Many people with COVID-19 will no longer be infectious to others after 5 

days. If you have a positive COVID-19 test result, try to stay at home and 

avoid contact with other people for 5 days after the day you took your test. At 

the end of this period, if you have a high temperature or feel unwell, try to 

follow this advice until you feel well enough to resume normal activities and 

you no longer have a high temperature if you had one. 

 Although many people will no longer be infectious to others after 5 days, 

some people may be infectious to other people for up to 10 days from the 

start of their infection. You should avoid meeting people at higher risk of 

becoming seriously unwell from COVID-19, especially those whose immune 

system means that they are at higher risk of serious illness from COVID-19, 

despite vaccination, for 10 days after the day you took your test. 

 If you leave your home during the 5 days after your positive test result the 

following steps will reduce the chance of passing on COVID-19 to others: 

o wear a well-fitting face covering made with multiple layers or a surgical 

face mask. 

o avoid crowded places such as public transport, large social gatherings, or 

anywhere that is enclosed or poorly ventilated. 

o cover your mouth and nose when you cough or sneeze; wash your hands 

frequently with soap and water for 20 seconds or use hand sanitiser after 

coughing, sneezing and blowing your nose and before you eat or handle 

food; avoid touching your face. 

Page 2

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/people-with-symptoms-of-a-respiratory-infection-including-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/people-with-symptoms-of-a-respiratory-infection-including-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-people-whose-immune-system-means-they-are-at-higher-risk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-people-whose-immune-system-means-they-are-at-higher-risk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-people-whose-immune-system-means-they-are-at-higher-risk


Developing a new GM 

Clean Air Plan 
Salford City Council

Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel

26 September 2022

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 3



Why is clean air important?

Poor air quality poses a significant environmental risk to public health. Long-term exposure to NO2 may 
contribute to the development of cardiovascular or respiratory disease and may reduce life expectancy. It is 
estimated that poor air quality contributes to 1,200 deaths a year in GM alone.

The ten GM local authorities have taken a GM-wide approach to produce a Clean Air Plan because it is 
recognised that air pollution is not limited by local authority boundaries. There are a number of exceedances of 
the legal limit across the conurbation.

The right plan

It is not just our legal obligation; it will make GM a healthier place. The new plan must function to both reduce 
NO2 exceedances and take into account the challenging new economic context (the financial impact of the 
Coronavirus pandemic on businesses, and the emerging cost of living crisis) since the previous plan was 
agreed in Summer 2021.

Working together enables a consistent and coordinated approach to maximise air quality benefits for all people 
living and working in Greater Manchester

GM’s authorities have a strong history of working together to secure a sustainable transport system and 
improving air quality. The Clean Air Plan will sit alongside a number of existing strategies, commitments and 
investments to achieve sustainable transport, contributing to better air quality.

The right Clean Air Plan for Greater Manchester

P
age 4



GM’s authorities have a legal responsibility to produce a 
Clean Air Plan

GM Authorities MUST 

address roadside NO2

compliance by reducing 

NO2 concentrations to 

within legal limit values in 

the “shortest possible time”.

Government has set out the 

process, timescale and 

provided the funding.

As a result of legal action, 

the UK Government has 

delegated responsibility to 

individual Local Authorities

In February 2022, Government supplied GM with a revised Direction, requiring GM to achieve 

compliance by 2026 and in the shortest possible time. This was in recognition of evidence GM had 

supplied showing that it was no longer possible to achieve compliance in 2024.

P
age 5



Why have the GM Authorities collaborated on a plan for clean air?

• The ten GM local authorities have taken a GM-wide approach to produce a Clean Air Plan because it is 

recognised that air pollution is not limited by local authority boundaries.

• Working together enables a consistent and coordinated approach to maximise air quality benefits for all 

people living and working in Greater Manchester; whilst minimising the risk of unintended consequences, 

such as displacing pollution to other locations within Greater Manchester.

• GM’s authorities have a strong history of working together to secure a sustainable transport system and 
improving air quality. The Clean Air Plan will sit alongside a number of existing strategies, commitments and 
investments to achieve sustainable transport, contributing to better air quality, such as:

o Five-Year Transport Delivery Plan (2021-26) – sets out the practical actions planned to 

deliver the 2040 Transport Strategy over this five-year period.

o City Centre Transport Strategy

o 5-Year Environment Plan

o EV Charging Strategy

GM’s authorities have chosen to work together to 

deliver the best outcome for the region

P
age 6



• To reduce NO2 concentrations to below the legal limits in the shortest possible time and by 

2026 by the latest;

• Achieve compliance in a way that is fair to businesses and residents, and not cause financial 

hardship to people in Greater Manchester; and

• Ensure the reduction of harmful emissions is at the centre of GM's wider objective- delivery of 

the Bee Network.

The new CAP will target investment at vehicle upgrades rather than imposing daily charges, 

targeted at places where NO2 concentrations are highest. 

Core objectives of the Clean Air Plan: 

P
age 7



What has changed since the previous Plan was 

produced in summer 2021 affecting air quality? 

• The number of new cars being 

purchased is much lower than 

expected. 

• Therefore the car fleet is older and 

emissions are higher.

• ZEBRA funding will provide electric 

buses in Stockport.

• Results in lower emissions on bus 

routes in Stockport, Manchester and 

Trafford. 

These changes have been reflected in a revised forecast of future air quality if no action was taken to improve 

air quality (ie: without a GM Clean Air Plan), but if other schemes that are planned, funded and committed were 

implemented. This is the ‘Do Minimum’ forecast.

P
age 8



The air quality challenge changes from being 

GM-wide in 2023 to locally focussed by 2026 
• GM has forecast NO2 exceedances in each future year to 2027, if no further action is taken (the ‘Do Minimum’ 

forecast).

• The forecasts show that the number of sites in exceedance reduces over time, moving from a GM-wide problem 
in 2023 to a localised problem in 2026 focussed around the regional centre.

• The GM CAP needs to be targeted at reducing NO2 concentrations at the last remaining locations of non-
compliance. 

Note: Analysis submitted to 

Government in Jan 2022 

demonstrated that no deliverable 

scheme could achieve full 

compliance in 2024, due to 

slowing of new car purchases as 

a result of Covid-19 and 
increases to used van prices.

P
age 9



In the city centre, buses are the greatest source of 

emissions vs commercial vehicles at Regent Road

At the four city centre sites that 

are forecast to remain non-

compliant in 2025, bus accounts 

for over 70% of emissions, so 

electric buses could be very 

effective in improving air quality.*

In contrast, Regent 

Road has very few 

buses running on it and 

acts as a major strategic 

route for commercial 

vehicles – with high 

volumes of HGVs – and 

cars heading to the city 

centre and inner ring 

road.

*NOTE: The relative taxi contributions are under-estimated, and 
car emissions over-estimated inside the Regional Centre Inner 
Relief Route. Further detailed analysis can be undertaken if a 
substantial city-centre Electric Taxi policy is considered

At Bolton Road, Bury, bus 

accounts for around 14% of 

emissions; switching to electric 

likely to be sufficient to achieve 

compliance.

P
age 10



The Clean Air Plan has already provided funding 

to support the upgrade of buses and HGVs 

£15.1m awarded for the retrofit of 973 buses, 609 retrofits completed to date

£1.08m awarded for the replacement of 66 buses, 58 compliant buses purchased to date

Around 270 HGVs awarded funding to upgrade, 97 compliant HGVs purchased to date

44 additional vehicles awarded funding where purchases had been made in anticipation 

of the Funds opening in early 2022

138 dealerships accredited across the UK and 6 finance partners signed agreements to 

join the Financial Support Scheme

P
age 11



There are new opportunities to tackle air quality 

that were not available in summer 2021

• GM-led investment in the Bee Network now to 2027 and sustainable clean vehicles including ZEB

• Confirmation of bus franchising - From September 2023 at least 50 new zero emission buses will be 
brought into service with the launch of the regulated bus system in Wigan and Bolton.

• ZEBRA funding awarded – 170 zero emission buses – equal to 10% of the whole bus fleet in the 
city-region – running from Stockport by 2024.

• City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS) funding, which provides significant benefits 
from delivering zero emission buses, £115m earmarked for a third of the bus fleet in GM to be zero 
emission by 2027.

This means that it is now possible to drive a reduction in emissions via investment 

in electric buses on a scale previously not possible.

P
age 12



But current economic conditions present new challenges 

making fundamental changes to the Plan necessary

GM’s businesses and population are particularly vulnerable to high inflation 

because of the high proportion of small businesses and low income households.

UK inflation reached a 40-year high of 

9% during April 2022, up from 2% in July 

2021 and is expected to keep rising

Consumer confidence has plummeted 

and demand is falling.

P
age 13



Costs are rising – and this may particularly affect vehicle-

owning businesses

The war in Ukraine meant that diesel prices were 

a third higher in March 2022 than July 2021

GM’s businesses are increasingly reporting that they are 

affected by the rising cost of materials.

Source: Growth Company Business Survey

P
age 14



The price of new and used commercial vehicles is rising, 

making upgrade less affordable

• Having remained stable for many years, record-breaking price rises are being reported of 

around 40% for Euro 6 vehicles, with the price gap between Euro 6 vs 5 vehicles increasing.

• Dealers are reporting constraints on availability of new vehicles – due to shortages of 

materials including semi-conductors – and that this means people are extending leases (so 

fewer vehicles enter the second-hand market) or trying to buy second-hand, leading to 

shortages in that market.

• Price rises reflect these shortages as well as increases in the cost of materials (for new 

vehicles).

70,900 

vehicles 

serving GM

81% compliant 

in 2023

• There is substantial evidence of significant price increases in the second-hand van market –

the scale of those rises has a high degree of variability depending on the particular vehicle. 

The extent of the reported rise varies between 13% and almost 60%.

• Overall, the evidence suggests that demand for new and second-hand vans remains strong, 

and therefore that the loss of supply caused by lockdowns in 2020 and more recently by the 

semi-conductor shortage is leading to price rises in the new and second-hand markets, and 

to long lead times for new vehicle orders.

• A high proportion of non-compliant vans are owned by sole traders and very small businesses 

which are vulnerable to the impacts of inflation and the cost of living crisis.

277,400 

vehicles 

serving GM

52% compliant 

in 2023

P
age 15



Some sectors potentially in scope for the Clean Air Plan have 

still not recovered from the impacts of the pandemic

• Hackneys and PHVs lost a substantial proportion of their trade during the pandemic, as 

travel for business, leisure and tourism purposes ceased.

• The number of vehicles licensed has reduced and drivers report that demand has not 

returned to pre-pandemic levels.

• The number of new vehicles entering the Hackney and PHV licensed fleets was much 

lower than normal in 2020 and 2021, so that the age of the fleet has increased. 

• This is assumed to result from market conditions and conditions in the wider economy, as 

well as continued uncertainty about licensing and clean air requirements for the fleet.

• Furthermore, there is anecdotal evidence that the value of Euro 5 and older Hackney cabs 

is falling, as more cities bring in tighter licensing standards and/or Clean Air Zones.

12,400 PHVs 

licensed in GM

68% compliant 

in 2023

1,700 vehicles 

serving GM

59% compliant 

in 2023

• The coach sector was badly affected by the pandemic, with lockdown restrictions meaning 

that many were forced to stop operating for long periods. 

• Demand from tourism and major events remained constrained during 2021, and recovery is 

expected to be slow.

• The SMMT states that demand for new buses and coaches dropped further in 2021 and 

was the weakest year since records began in 1996.

2,100 Hackneys 

licensed in GM

35% compliant 

in 2023

P
age 16



• The cost of living crisis means that businesses are less able to afford to invest in vehicle upgrade, 
whilst households are less able to absorb any costs that may be passed on to them.

• This is exacerbated by rising vehicle prices and – for some vehicle types – lower residual values of 
non-compliant vehicles. There is also evidence that demand for new and compliant second-hand vehicles 
is exceeding supply, leading to long wait times and rising prices.

• A charging Clean Air Zone could therefore cause unacceptable financial hardship and contribute to 
business failures.

• Furthermore, new opportunities have arisen – via the approval of bus franchising and new funding for 
electric buses – that mean that GM has the opportunity to tackle emissions in a different way.

• Because exceedances become more localised in 2025 and 2026, action can be targeted at those 
locations suffering the worst air quality.

• In summary, any intervention, such as a charging clean air zone, that could see businesses forced to pay 
additional charges and potentially pass on costs to the consumer, could have severe consequences for 
those groups who are already struggling to cope with the cost of living crisis.

Challenging economic conditions, ongoing pandemic 

impacts and rising vehicle prices necessitate a rethink 

P
age 17



GM’s preferred approach is an investment-led Clean Air 

Plan with action targeted at the most polluted places

Investment in electric buses across 

the network and targeted at the last 

points of exceedance:

• 50 electric buses in the first 

phase of franchising, including at 

Bury Bridge.

• Electric buses on services 

travelling through the city centre 

at key places

Electric Bus
Funding to 

support upgrades

Funding to support upgrade to 

cleaner vehicles:

• Continuation of existing Bus 

Fund

• Review of Funding offer for 

HGV, coach, Hackney Cab and 

PHV.

• Targeted proposals to support 

upgrade to the cleanest 

vehicles in key locations, 

particularly Hackneys.

Partnership 

working

Working in partnership with 

stakeholders and with other 

transport bodies to deliver the best 

solutions:

• Working with National Highways 

to tackle poor air quality on 

Regent Road and on the 

A628/A57 at Mottram.

• Working with stakeholders to 

ensure the Plan delivers change 

and meets their needs.

P
age 18



What is being proposed around funding?

Vehicle type Clean Air Funding

Bus
Continue existing Bus Fund and revisit funding amounts with evidence of 

inflationary costs

HGV Review existing Clean Commercial Vehicle Fund and revisit funding amounts 

with evidence of inflationary costs, explore focussing eligibility to areas of 

exceedances, rather than GM residency.Coach

LGV

Not in scope for funding, unless a minibus is licensed as a PHV.

Minibus

GM Hackney Cab
Review existing Clean Taxi Fund and revisit funding amounts with evidence of 

inflationary costs, explore focussing eligibility to areas of exceedances.
GM PHV

P
age 19



Through the Bee Network Vision, GM has set out a core ambition for a London-style integrated 
transport network that:

• Provides a consistent and high quality user-experience across all travel in all parts of GM;

• Promotes a clear pathway to GM’s Net Zero Carbon Vision by providing real public transport 
and active travel choices for all; promoting sustainable travel behavioural change through 
integrated city region planning; and supporting the electrification of vehicles and public transport 
fleets; and

• Promotes levelling up through the provision of sustainable transport connectivity to key 
growth locations and the provision of affordable public transport options for all of our 
communities. 

This integrated transport network approach was set out by GM to Government through GM’s 
CRSTS and BSIP submissions.

An investment-led Clean Air Plan is part of GM’s plan 

to deliver a more sustainable transport network

P
age 20



’The Case for a New Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan’ has been submitted, to the 
Secretary of State for the Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. Greater 
Manchester is awaiting a response on the submission.

In line with the Air Quality Administration Committee recommendations noted at the 1st

July meeting, GM is continuing to progress the policy development for the new GM CAP 
in support of a non-charging, investment-led approach.

Latest position with Government

P
age 21



GM leaders have committed to a participatory approach to the development of the new Plan to 
ensure that GM’s proposals are well-grounded in evidence in terms of the circumstances of 
affected groups and possible impacts of the Plan on them, and therefore the overall deliverability 
and effectiveness of the Plan.

The purpose of the PPD activity is to:

• Seek views on the elements of GM’s proposals addressing economic conditions as well 
as evidence submissions on vehicle types

• Support an early understanding around impacts and any unintended consequences

• Inform the ongoing plan for engagement, including consideration of future consultation 
requirements

This will be carried out via two streams of work:

• Stakeholder engagement sessions

• Research – online survey and in-depth focus groups

What is the Participatory Policy Development 

approach?

Survey for coaches, taxi/PHV and HGV’s 

vehicle owners is live until Monday 10th 

October. Seeks information about:

• vehicle and business.

• usage in and around Greater 

Manchester.

P
age 22



• By applying a Participatory Policy Development process, GM will develop, assess and agree a 
package of measures forming a proposed new GM CAP. 

• This package of measures will be consulted upon in early 2023. 

• GM will review the responses to the consultation and make any adaptations to the proposals as 
necessary. It is anticipated that a decision could be made to proceed with the new GM CAP in 
Summer 2023. 

Next steps: developing and consulting on a package of measures

1 July 
2022: 

Case for a 
new GM 

CAP 
submitted

Participatory 
Policy 

Development 
Process to 

develop 
measures

Develop, assess 
and agree 
package of 
measures

Consult and 
review 

proposals

Decision to 
proceed

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
 

 

 
PART 1 (OPEN TO THE PUBLIC) 

 

   
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE 
  

 

TO GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL 
26 SEPTEMBER 2022  

 
 
TITLE:  REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 2022/23 
  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

It is recommended that the panel Members: 
 

 Note the current position and forecasted position to year end for the Service Group’s revenue 
and capital budget. 

 

 Note further measures to bring forecast expenditure back in line with the budget. 

     
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 

(a) Revenue forecast 
The Service Group budget for 2022/23 is forecast to balance at year end. 
 

(b) Capital 
The Service Group programme budget for 2022/23 is £197.504m.  

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

 SAP general ledger and BI reports 

 Various documents held on the accountancy team 

 
  
 
CONTACT OFFICERS:  

 
David R Mills  07990 977 388 david.mills@salford.gov.uk 
 

 
 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High  
 
Key risks to budgetary control risk are identified in this report.  

 
 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: Sections in this report consider the revenue budget. 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4

mailto:david.mills@salford.gov.uk


   
 

   
 

 
LEGAL ADVICE OBTAINED: Not applicable 

 
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE OBTAINED:   This report concerns key aspects of the Council’s revenue 

finances and has been produced by the Finance division. 
 

 
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): None specifically   
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 2022/23 revenue budget 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



   
 

   
 

1   Introduction 

 

1.1   This report is set out in two main sections: 

• Section 2 sets out the current position of expenditure against the revenue budget 
and forecasts the year end position, highlighting any risks/sensitivities. 

 
• Section 3 provides an update of the capital programme. 

 

2      Revenue Budget 

2.1 The current position and year end forecast are set out in Table A below.  

Expenditure data reflects salaries and other expenditure up to 30/06/2022 
 

2.2 Table A: Revenue budget to June 2022 
 

  

 

2.3 Risks and Opportunities 

 
Set out below are those areas which have been identified as currently representing the 
greatest risks and potential opportunities in budgetary control. These include areas where 

there is a high current and/or projected variance.  
  

It is expected that the service will have a balanced position at year end. 
 
However, it must be noted that due to continued inflation and price increases, the level of 

uncertainty and risk has increased. The service together with the support of finance are 
working closely to report the figures as accurately as possible. 

Consolidated figures

Annual 

Budget

£'000

Forecast 

Outturn 

£'000

Forecast 

Variation

£'000

Risk Assessment

Planning & Transport 12,618     11,623     995          Green

Housing, Communities & 

Neighbourhoods 1,346       1,287       59            Green

Environment & Community Safety 21,431     21,969     (538) Red

Culture & Leisure 6,662       6,685       (23) Red

Regeneration 2,496       2,432       64            Green

Property (695) (138) (557) Red

Total 43,858     43,858     -           

Page 27



   
 

   
 

 
 

Planning and Transport 
 
The underspend on Planning & Transport is predominantly as a result of Urban Vision, now 

Technical Services being brought back in house.  
 

Bus lane enforcement surplus income, the camera on Victoria Bridge Street, remains 
contributing to the overall balanced position however, to a lesser degree than in 2021/22. 
 

Parking income does appear to be showing improvement especially since new machines have 
been installed, although still not  to pre-covid levels. 

 
Environment and Community Safety 
 

Environment & Community Safety group continues to feel the pressure of Covid-19 and 
inflationary pressures. 

 
Whilst income on the school catering account has improved, food increases has offset this 
positive effect.  Increased fuel costs are impacting on other services such as waste, street 

cleansing and grounds maintenance and will be monitored closely with the service. 
 

The waste service position has been affected by the outcome of a job evaluation which has 
significantly impacted on the financial position of the service. 
 

Finance and service colleagues are reviewing the charge out rates for the grounds 
maintenance account with a view to these being implemented, this should reduce the 

overspend on the account. 
 
Culture & Leisure  

 
The adverse variance relates to pressures on the Gateway library savings. 

 
Property 
 

Pressures that remain on Salford University Park and Salford Innovation Forum, as well as on 
the Quays due to Peel serving notice on the service charge. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 28



   
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

3 Capital 

 

3.1  This section advises the Lead Members of developments regarding the Place capital 

programme, which as of June totals £197.504m.  
 
3.2 Place Capital Programme 2022/23 
 

 Executive Lead Members are asked to consider and comment on the current Place Capital 
programme and expenditure to June in Table B, which totals £14.645m.  

  

 Table B – Place Capital Programme 2022/23 
 

 
 

 

3.3 Scheme re-profiles for delivery in subsequent years  
 

 At the request of the Corporate Capital Working Group the service is currently undertaking a 
review of the plan for 2022-23 to ascertain what should be reprofiled into subsequent years. 
Additional work is on-going to provide an indicative plan for spend in 2023-24 and 2024-25. This, 

together with the reprofiled 2022-23 will be presented as a report in due course. 
    

3.4 Adjustments to the Programme  
  

 There are no adjustments to this programme at present. 

 
4. Recommendation 

Members are requested to note the current position regarding the 2022/23 capital programme, 
and the proposal to re-profile the current year together with additional indicative spending for 
subsequent years. 
 

  

Row Labels

Total Self 

financing / 

Invest to save

Total 

Unsupported Total Grant 

Total 

Contributions 

(inc. capital 

receipts)

Total Approved 

Programme

Sum of Spend 

to end of June 

22

Place 57.960 45.425 91.712 2.407 197.504 14.645

Environment 0.004 2.859 0.011 0.663 3.537 0.146

Highways 0.000 8.051 8.508 0.170 16.730 0.550

Housing - Regulatory Services 3.216 0.215 3.430 0.134

Housing Strategy and Enabling 44.472 9.430 52.111 106.013 4.984

Infrastructure 0.000 4.151 18.573 1.354 24.078 4.354

Low carbon 3.558 0.871 2.258 0.000 6.687 0.060

Property 9.925 9.978 0.633 0.002 20.539 3.176

Regeneration 5.171 8.346 0.089 13.605 1.135

Salford Community Leisure 1.700 1.057 0.128 2.885 0.106

Grand Total 57.960 45.425 91.712 2.407 197.504 14.645

Capital Monitoring Statement (£m)

Page 29



   
 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Capital Monitoring Statement (£m)      

       

 Row Labels  

 Total Self 
financing / Invest 

to save  
 Total 

Unsupported   Total Grant   

 Total 
Contributions 
(inc. capital 

receipts)  
 Total Approved 

Programme  
 Sum of Spend to 
end of June 22  

 Place  
                      

57.960  
                      

45.425  
                      

91.712  
                         

2.407  
                    

197.504  
                      

14.645  

 Environment  
                         

0.004  
                         

2.859  
                         

0.011  
                         

0.663  
                         

3.537  
                         

0.146  

 Bereavement    
                         

0.051  
                                

-      
                         

0.051  
                         

0.025  

 Essential equipment for service delivery     
                         

0.129  
                                

-      
                         

0.129  
                         

0.002  

 Greenspace & Streetscene Infrastructure    
                         

0.663  
                         

0.004  
                         

0.133  
                         

0.799  
                         

0.031  

 Operational Division Schemes  
                         

0.004  
                         

2.014  
                                

-      
                         

2.018  
                         

0.084  

 Parks Improvement Schemes    
                         

0.002  
                         

0.008  
                         

0.530  
                         

0.540  
                         

0.005  

 Highways  
                                

-    
                         

8.051  
                         

8.508  
                         

0.170  
                      

16.730  
                         

0.550  

 Block 3  
                                

-      
                         

5.045  
                         

0.031  
                         

5.075  
                         

0.198  

 Capitalisation of Highways Maintenance  
                                

-    
                         

1.980      
                         

1.980    

 Construction schemes  
                                

-    
                         

0.229  
                         

0.555  
                         

0.140  
                         

0.924  
                         

0.113  

 Crash Barrier Programme (S)  
                                

-    
                         

0.262  
                                

-      
                         

0.262    

 Fleet Replacement - Highways vehicles  
                                

-    
                         

0.609  
                                

-      
                         

0.609    

 Flood Risk Management (DIP / CIP)  
                                

-    
                         

0.274  
                                

-      
                         

0.274  
                         

0.011  

 Highways Investment Programme  
                                

-    
                         

1.552  
                         

1.098    
                         

2.650  
                         

0.202  

 Highways Network Management  
                                

-    
                         

0.032  
                                

-      
                         

0.032    

P
age 30



   
 

   
 

 Lester Road Carriageway Refurbishment     
                         

0.525  
                         

1.175    
                         

1.700    

 Lighting Programme (High Mast)  
                                

-    
                         

0.055  
                                

-      
                         

0.055    

 Signs and Bollards  
                                

-    
                         

0.117  
                                

-      
                         

0.117  
                         

0.005  

 Structures   
                                

-    
                         

2.418  
                         

0.635    
                         

3.053  
                         

0.021  

 Housing - Regulatory Services    
                         

3.216  
                         

0.215    
                         

3.430  
                         

0.134  

 Affordable warmth    
                         

0.081  
                                

-      
                         

0.081  
                         

0.008  

 Civica Upgrade    
                         

0.001  
                                

-      
                         

0.001    

 Empty properties    
                         

0.413  
                         

0.215    
                         

0.628  
                         

0.000  

 Former HMR CPO    
                         

0.088  
                                

-      
                         

0.088  
                         

0.000  

 Handyperson    
                         

0.351  
                                

-      
                         

0.351  
                         

0.051  

 Home Improvement Agency    
                         

0.331  
                                

-      
                         

0.331  
                         

0.027  

 Housing crime reduction    
                         

0.154  
                                

-      
                         

0.154  
                         

0.047  

 Housing enforcement    
                         

1.000  
                                

-      
                         

1.000  
                         

0.001  

 Housing project costs    
                         

0.606  
                                

-      
                         

0.606    

 Salford Money Line / Loan products    
                         

0.066  
                                

-      
                         

0.066    

 Winter Welfare    
                         

0.126  
                                

-      
                         

0.126    

 Housing Strategy and Enabling  
                      

44.472  
                         

9.430  
                      

52.111    
                    

106.013  
                         

4.984  

 Creating a new Pendleton  
                                

-    
                         

0.415  
                                

-      
                         

0.415  
                                

-    

 Derive  
                         

2.981  
                         

2.666  
                                

-      
                         

5.647  
                         

0.519  

 Housing Delivery and Development  
                      

35.804  
                         

2.209  
                      

46.418    
                      

84.430  
                         

2.089  

 Housing strategy capitalised costs  
                                

-    
                         

0.140  
                                

-      
                         

0.140  
                                

-    

P
age 31



   
 

   
 

 HRA new builds  
                         

5.687  
                                

-    
                         

5.693    
                      

11.380  
                         

2.376  

 Tower block safety works  
                                

-    
                         

4.000  
                                

-      
                         

4.000  
                                

-    

 Infrastructure  
                                

-    
                         

4.151  
                      

18.573  
                         

1.354  
                      

24.078  
                         

4.354  

 Pre-Imp Infrastructure    
                         

0.111  
                         

0.005  
                                

-    
                         

0.116  
                         

0.006  

 Quays Media City Trafford Rd Corridor 
Project    

                         
3.221  

                         
2.422  

                         
1.354  

                         
6.997  

                         
1.922  

 Strategic Connections  
                                

-    
                         

0.399  
                      

16.108  
                                

-    
                      

16.507  
                         

2.426  

 Western Gateway    
                         

0.420  
                         

0.039  
                                

-    
                         

0.458  
                         

0.001  

 Low carbon  
                         

3.558  
                         

0.871  
                         

2.258  
                                

-    
                         

6.687  
                         

0.060  

 Kenyon Way solar farm & Charlestown weir 
hydro (ERDF programme)  

                         
2.189  

                                
-    

                         
0.984  

                                
-    

                         
3.173  

                                
-    

 Unlocking Clean Energy  
                         

1.369  
                         

0.528  
                         

1.274  
                                

-    
                         

3.171  
                         

0.060  

 Zero carbon pipeline development    
                         

0.343  
                                

-    
                                

-    
                         

0.343  
                                

-    

 Property  
                         

9.925  
                         

9.978  
                         

0.633  
                         

0.002  
                      

20.539  
                         

3.176  

 100 Embankment  
                         

6.624  
                                

-    
                                

-    
                                

-    
                         

6.624  
                                

-    

 Buile Hill mansion     
                         

0.700  
                                

-    
                                

-    
                         

0.700    

 Carbon management programme & Energy 
Manager  

                         
3.301  

                         
0.089  

                                
-    

                                
-    

                         
3.389  

                         
1.446  

 Moor Lane - Leasehold    
                         

4.665  
                                

-    
                                

-    
                         

4.665    

 MyWork - civic ventilation    
                         

0.625  
                                

-    
                                

-    
                         

0.625    

 Property - General     
                         

2.532  
                                

-    
                         

0.002  
                         

2.534  
                         

0.329  

 Property - New Premises    
                         

0.700  
                                

-    
                                

-    
                         

0.700  
                                

-    

 Property capitalised salaries    
                         

0.275  
                                

-    
                                

-    
                         

0.275  
                                

-    

 Public Sector Decarbonisation  
                                

-    
                         

0.393  
                         

0.633  
                                

-    
                         

1.026  
                         

1.401  

P
age 32



   
 

   
 

 Regeneration     
                         

5.171  
                         

8.346  
                         

0.089  
                      

13.605  
                         

1.135  

 Capitalised Salaries    
                         

1.257  
                                

-    
                                

-    
                         

1.257    

 City Centre Salford    
                         

0.793  
                         

7.421    
                         

8.214  
                         

0.825  

 Innovation Pipeline Development    
                         

0.100  
                                

-      
                         

0.100    

 Pre-Imp Development    
                         

0.315      
                         

0.315  
                         

0.073  

 Quays and Media City UK    
                         

1.304  
                         

0.111  
                         

0.065  
                         

1.480  
                         

0.088  

 RHS Bridgewater    
                         

0.933  
                         

0.813  
                                

-    
                         

1.747  
                         

0.126  

 Strategic Place Making    
                         

0.118  
                                

-    
                         

0.008  
                         

0.126    

 Town centres    
                         

0.351  
                                

-    
                         

0.016  
                         

0.367  
                         

0.023  

 Salford Community Leisure    
                         

1.700  
                         

1.057  
                         

0.128  
                         

2.885  
                         

0.106  

 Brookhouse Changing Rooms    
                         

0.035  
                                

-      
                         

0.035    

 Building ventilation      
                                

-    
                         

0.088  
                         

0.088  
                         

0.033  

 Cleavley track - Synthetic Track Repair    
                         

0.019  
                                

-      
                         

0.019    

 Cultural Development Schemes    
                         

0.535  
                         

0.247  
                         

0.003  
                         

0.785  
                         

0.050  

 Ordsall Futsal    
                         

0.000  
                                

-    
                         

0.008  
                         

0.008  
                         

0.001  

 Outdoor Sports - Grass Playing Piches    
                         

0.140  
                         

0.140    
                         

0.280    

 Pendleton Leisure Centre    
                         

0.891  
                         

0.670    
                         

1.561  
                         

0.021  

 Salford Roosters Changing Rooms    
                         

0.078    
                         

0.010  
                         

0.088    

 Salford Sports Village      
                                

-    
                         

0.019  
                         

0.019    

 SCL IT Equipment    
                         

0.003  
                                

-      
                         

0.003    

 Grand Total  
                      

57.960  
                      

45.425  
                      

91.712  
                         

2.407  
                    

197.504  
                      

14.645  

 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Temporary Accommodation 
in Salford

Rachel Connelly, SCC Head 
of Supported Housing

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 5



Number households in Temporary 
Accommodation in Salford

Singles Families Total 
% increase 

from August 
2018

15.08.18 54 71 125

15.08.19 78 120 198 58%

15.08.20 119 158 277 122%

15.08.21 141 156 297 138%

15.08.22 175 248 423 238%

P
age 36



Number of children in Temporary 
Accommodation in Salford

Total no. 
households in 
Temp Accomm

Total no. children 
in Temp Accomm

% increase from 
01.04.19

01.04.19 160 179

01.10.19 193 239 34%

01.04.20 262 300 68%

01.10.20 285 325 82%

01.04.21 287 329 84%

01.10.21 339 414 131%

01.04.22 378 443 147%

P
age 37



Tenancy/Resettlement 
Support Offer

• August 2018 Support caseloads of approx. 14 
households per support officer

• Support to 125 temp accomm households and 
100 resettled households

• Resettlement support for approx. 3-4 months

• August 2022 Support caseloads of approx. 28 
households per support officer

• Support to 423 temp accomm households and 60 
resettled households

• Resettlement support for approx. 1-2 weeks

P
age 38



Salford 
Outcomes

• Despite the increase in numbers in TA, the majority of 
households are placed in dispersed general needs 
style accommodation

• Only two breaches of families in B&B for 6 weeks plus 
in the last 2 years. One by 2 days and one by 1 week. 
Both issues relating to referral to other LAs

• Average length of stay in B&B for families for the last 
2 years has been 10 days

• Much work undertaken to be as client focused as 
possible, despite great challenges

• Very few and minor complaints, no review of 
temporary accommodation requests submitted

• Increasing numbers in temporary accommodation 
inevitably leads to higher costs to the council

P
age 39



Rough 
Sleeping 
Salford

• Reduction in rough sleeper numbers from 49 in 2017, to 8 as of 
September 2022

• All current rough sleepers have options if they choose to come 
indoors. People begging are generally not rough sleeping

• Rough Sleeper Initiative (RSI) funding secured at an average of £2 
million per year for the next 3 years

• RSI provides accommodation options, support staff and outreach 
officers

• RSI provides Welfare Rights and Debt Advice support and specialist 
mental health and substance misuse support which is more tailored

• ABEN provides 160 bedspaces and 20 bedspaces for people with no 
recourse to public funds

• Rough Sleeper Drug and Alcohol funding through Public Health 
supplements the housing related support and enhances drug and 
alcohol treatment options and specialist support

P
age 40



Rough 
Sleeping 
Salford

• Rough Sleeper Accommodation Programme (RSAP) 
provides capital and revenue funds to deliver 
accommodation and support

• Property to be available to rough sleepers for approx. 30 
years and support funding until March 2025

• Funding secured for 88 units with 60 delivered by RPs and 
28 directly by SCC

• Extensive support offer with caseloads when fully staffed 
at around 1:14

• Increased complexities in the people being supported 
particularly with mental health and substance misuse

• Shows what can be achieved with the right resources and 
specialist services

P
age 41



Questions 
and Answers

P
age 42



 
 

 
GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL - WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 AS AT 26/09/22 

 

 
Date  
 

 
Agenda Item(s) 

 
Presenting Officer(s) 

24/10/22  Update on Flooding in Worsley and Irlam  
 Skills and Work progress update foresight on revised skills and work strategy (including 

role in terms of delivery of the Inclusive Economy Growth Strategy) 
 Zero Carbon and Climate Change Programme Overview (TBC) 
 

Shoaib Mohammad / United Utilities 
Matt Ainsworth 
 
TBC 

28/11/22  Infrastructure regarding Roads and Buses 
 Highways Investment Programme 
 Cycling and E-Scooters - roll out to the west of the city 
 Budget Monitoring - Q2 
 

James Shuttleworth 
Steve Mangan / Rob Owen 
Chris Smith / TfGM / Lee Evans 
David Mills 

 
NO MEETING IN DECEMBER 

 
23/01/23  Swinton and Eccles Town Centre visioning and progress update 

 Port Salford 
 Homelessness Strategy Update 
 

Kurt Partington 
Chris Smith 
Julie Craik / Marie Donaghey 

27/02/22  Housing Strategy Update 
 Derive Update 
 Budget Monitoring - Q3 
 

Andrew Leigh 
Andrew Leigh 
David Mills 

 
ABEYANCE LIST 

 

 Registered Housing Providers – update on achievements/challenges. 
 Highway Works (including how the council communicates with the public and how it works with the 

companies delivering works in the city). 
 Buile Hill Mansion / Park 
 Affordable Housing 
 Review of Travel Plans developed through planning applications. 
 Update on Salford University Business Park. 
 

 

 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



 

 2 

 
Portfolio of the Board 

 
Membership (12 Members) 
 

1. Physical regeneration 
2. Business investment and programmes 
3. Planning, housing and transport strategy and delivery 
4. Pendleton PFI 
5. Urban Vision (Transition) 
6. Housing 
7. Environmental sustainability 
8. Climate change 
9. To discharge the Council’s scrutiny functions as a lead local flood authority 
10. To scrutinise the Council’s business plan and budget in this functional area 
 
 
 

Councillor Brabiner 
Councillor Brooks 
Councillor Dickman 
Councillor R. Garrido 
Councillor Lewis 
Councillor Linden 
Councillor Nelson 
Councillor Pevitt (VC) 
Councillor Saeed 
Councillor Shama 
Councillor Sharpe (C) 
Councillor Ward 

 P
age 44



1 

 

Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 

 

Held on Monday, 25th July 2022, 6:00pm – 8.00pm, in The Salford Suite, Civic Centre, Chorley 
Road, Swinton. 

 
Present:  

Councillor Sharpe   – in the Chair 

Councillors Brabiner, Brooks, Dickman, R. Garrido, Lewis, Nelson, Saeed, Shama and Ward 
 

Councillor McCusker*  –  Lead Member for Planning, Transport & Sustainable 
Development 

Officers: 

Claire Edwards   –  Democratic Services 
Peter Openshaw*  – Assistant Director, Environment & Community Safety 

James Shuttleworth  – Head of Planning 
 

Others in attendance: 

Three members of the public were in attendance. 
 

*Attended remotely via MS Teams. 
 
1. Welcome and apologies for absence 

 
The Chair welcomed those present to the meeting.  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Linden and Pevitt. 

 
2. Declarations of interest 

 

Councillor Nelson indicated that he had previously been employed by the Manchester Climate 
Change Agency, however, this was no longer the case. 
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. Fire at Hornbeam Court, Pendleton – Sunday 24th July 2022 

 
The Chair informed the panel that this item had been added to the agenda due to three 

residents of the tower blocks in Pendleton being in attendance at the meeting, as they wished 
to raise some issues regarding the above incident which had taken place the previous day and 

had resulted in an elderly resident having tragically passed away.  Members of the panel 
expressed their sadness at this news. 
 

The residents raised the following issues: 
 

 Residents having had to stand outside once evacuated from the building.  Community 
room(s) not having been made available to the residents who had been evacuated.  No 

blankets, drinks, etc. made available. 

 No evacuation chairs to assist with getting disabled people out of the building.  Somebody 
in a wheelchair on 11th floor had been unable to get out. 

 Fire drills not taking place on a regular basis. 

 Fire alarm in a particular flat not working / not being connected. 

 A previous occasion when a fire had taken place in one of the tower blocks following which 
residents were informed that it had been a false alarm. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



2 

 

 Concerns around fire safety not being taken seriously and not being acted upon. 

 Pendleton Together refusing to open the office to residents.  An occasion when residents 

had been unable to contact anybody from Pendleton Together and there had also been no 
response from security. 

 No representative from Pendleton Together had been present on-site on Monday 25 July. 
 

Peter Openshaw reported that initial feedback from GMFRS had indicated that there were no 
fire safety issues or concerns around the evacuation procedure.  He stated that his 
understanding was that when the fire service attended, they decided that no further evacuation 

was necessary and, therefore, residents on higher floors were not evacuated.  He had been 
informed that those who were evacuated were outside for approximately 50 minutes and that 

the fire service carried out visits to residents on the vulnerable list.  He reported that an 
investigation was now underway to establish the full facts of the incident. 
 

Councillor R. Garrido reported that he had been contacted by the residents earlier that day 
following which he had sent various emails regarding their concerns, however, he had not 

received a response.  Peter Openshaw expressed his regret that Councillor R. Garrido had not 
received a response acknowledging his correspondence.  He made reference to the incident 
having taken place the previous day and indicated that it would be necessary for all the facts to 

be reviewed prior to a response being issued. 
     

Discussion took place during which reference was made to: 
 

 The need for the following issues to be addressed as soon as possible: 

o Residents to be provided with support in terms of their mental health and wellbeing. 
o Residents to be provided with reassurance that processes are in place should any of the 

blocks need to be evacuated. 
o Ensure that residents have somewhere to raise their concerns with Pendleton Together 

and with the Council. 

 Details of the incident not having been communicated to all Councillors. 
 

It was requested that Panel Members be provided with a response to the issues that had been 
raised by email prior to the next meeting, scheduled for Monday 26th September. 
 

RESOLVED: THAT Panel Members be provided with a response to the issues that had been 
raised by the date of the above-mentioned meeting. 

 
4. Local Plan Update 

 

James Shuttleworth gave a presentation providing an update on the Local Plan, which included 
information with regard to the following: 

 
 Salford Local Plan Part One – Development Management Policies and Designations. 
 Key Elements of the Part 1 Local Plan. 

 Local Plan Hearing Sessions – December 2021. 
 Local Plan Examination – likely next steps. 

 Local Plan – Proposed Policy. 
o A Fairer City – Social Value 
o A Fairer City – Affordable Housing 

o A Fairer City – Health 
o A Sustainable City – Low Carbon / Climate Change 

o A Sustainable City – Transport 
o A sustainable City – Green Infrastructure 

Page 46



3 

 

o A Liveable City – Design and Amenity 
o A Liveable City – Key Areas for Growth 

o A Liveable City – Centres 
 Further details through the Local Plan Examination website: 

http://www.salford.gov.uk/slp-examination 
 

Discussion took place which included reference to the following: 

 

 The consultation process involved. 

Concern regarding comms. being able to engage meaningfully with the process.  Reference 
was made to the impact of repeated consultation exercises in terms of people becoming 
disenfranchised from the process. 

Reference was made to the process required in terms of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  It was indicated that officers are working to try and find a more enfranchising 

process with the resources available.   

 Protection of trees – it was indicated that the Local Plan is not a method through which 

trees are managed – reference was made to the procedures in place. 

 Carbon emissions in Salford. 

 Timescales in respect of Part 2. 

 Affordable housing provision and viability. 
Assurance was providing in terms of developers being robustly challenged with regard to 

their viability submissions where appropriate, whilst recognising their need for profit in order 
to operate. 

 A Sustainable City – Transport – how it was intended that this would be achieved in parts of 
the city, such as Boothstown and Worsley, where bus routes that were needed were not in 
place. 

 Biodiversity net gain in terms of enhancing public areas.   
Reference was made to the provision of green infrastructure being opportunity based as 

opposed to being planned for each ward. 
o Members were invited to submit suggestions regarding potential sites for biodiversity net 

gain to James Shuttleworth. 

 Green Belt protection. 

 Chat Moss. 

 Travel plans developed as part of the planning process and how they are conditioned and 
enforced. 

 Health improvement assessments. 

 The need for the required infrastructure to be provided (health services, schools, etc.) when 

housing developments are built in the city.   
Reference was made to financial contributions towards such infrastructure being secured 
through the planning process.   

 Concern regarding developers not maintaining the upkeep of public realm included in 
housing developments, resulting in maintenance in future years having to be undertaken by 

the council. 
It was indicated that some of the above issues were likely to relate to enforcement as 

management arrangements should be in place. 

 Extra care provision in the city. 
 

RESOLVED: THAT the content of the presentation and discussion be noted. 
 

 
 
 

Page 47

http://www.salford.gov.uk/slp-examination


4 

 

5. Zero Carbon and Climate Change Programme Overview  

 

RESOLVED: THAT, due to time constraints, the above item be deferred for consideration at a 
future meeting. 
 
6. Work Programme 

 

RESOLVED: THAT the content of the Work Programme be agreed. 
 
7. Date and Time of Next Meeting - Monday 26th September 2022 at 6:00pm in the Salford Suite, 

Civic Centre. 
 

Page 48


	Agenda
	 Guidance for members of the public attending face to face meetings.
	3 Developing a new GM Clean Air Plan.
	4 Budget Monitoring Report - Quarter 1.
	5 Update on Temporary Accommodation and Rough Sleeping in Salford.
	6 Work Programme.
	7 Minutes of previous meeting.

